

1 (d) 1. Notwithstanding the length of time specified by the ~~corporation~~ authority  
2 under par. (a), the designation of an area as an enterprise development zone shall  
3 expire 90 days after the day on which the ~~corporation~~ authority determines that the  
4 forgone tax revenues under par. (c) will equal or exceed the limit established for the  
5 enterprise development zone.

6 2. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall immediately notify the department of  
7 revenue and the governing body of any city, village, town, or federally recognized  
8 American Indian tribe or band in which the enterprise development zone is located  
9 of a change in the expiration date of the enterprise development zone under this  
10 paragraph.

11 (6) (a) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall revoke the entitlement of a  
12 person to claim tax benefits under this section, and the designation of the area as an  
13 enterprise development zone shall expire, if the person does any of the following:

14 (b) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the department of revenue within 30  
15 days after revoking an entitlement under par. (a).

16 **SECTION 527.** 238.398 of the statutes is renumbered 235.398, and 235.398 (2)  
17 (a) and (b), (3) (a) and (b), (4) (a) (intro.) and (b) and (5) (intro.) and (e), as renumbered,  
18 are amended to read:

19 235.398 (2) (a) Except as provided under par. (c), the ~~corporation~~ authority may  
20 designate one area in the state as an agricultural development zone. The area must  
21 be located in a rural municipality. An agricultural business that is located in an  
22 agricultural development zone and that is certified by the ~~corporation~~ authority  
23 under sub. (3) is eligible for tax benefits as provided in sub. (3).

24 (b) The designation of an area as an agricultural development zone shall be in  
25 effect for 10 years from the time that the ~~corporation~~ authority first designates the

1 area. Not more than \$5,000,000 in tax benefits may be claimed in an agricultural  
2 development zone, except that the ~~corporation~~ authority may allocate the amount of  
3 unallocated airport development zone tax credits, as provided under s. ~~238.3995~~  
4 235.3995 (3) (b), to agricultural development zones for which the \$5,000,000  
5 maximum allocation is insufficient. The ~~corporation~~ authority may change the  
6 boundaries of an agricultural development zone during the time that its designation  
7 is in effect. A change in the boundaries of an agricultural development zone does not  
8 affect the duration of the designation of the area or the maximum tax benefit amount  
9 that may be claimed in the agricultural development zone.

10 (3) (a) Except as provided under par. (c), the ~~corporation~~ authority may certify  
11 for tax benefits in an agricultural development zone a new or expanding agricultural  
12 business that is located in the agricultural development zone. In determining  
13 whether to certify a business under this subsection, the ~~corporation~~ authority shall  
14 consider, among other things, the number of jobs that will be created or retained by  
15 the business.

16 (b) When the ~~corporation~~ authority certifies an agricultural business under  
17 this subsection, the ~~corporation~~ authority shall establish a limit on the amount of tax  
18 benefits that the business may claim. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall enter into an  
19 agreement with the business that specifies the limit on the amount of tax benefits  
20 that the business may claim and reporting requirements with which the business  
21 must comply.

22 (4) (a) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the department of revenue  
23 of all the following:

1 (b) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall annually verify information submitted to  
2 the ~~corporation~~ authority under s. 71.07 (2dm) or (2dx), 71.28 (1dm) or (1dx), 71.47  
3 (1dm) or (1dx), or 76.636.

4 (5) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall adopt rules policies and procedures  
5 for the operation of this section, including rules policies and procedures related to all  
6 of the following:

7 (e) The exchange of information between the ~~corporation~~ authority and the  
8 department of revenue.

*as affected by 2015  
Wisconsin Act... (this act)*

9 **SECTION 528.** 238.399 of the statutes is renumbered 235.399, and 235.399 (1)  
10 (am) 2. (intro.), (3) (a), (b) (intro.), (bm), (c) and (d), (5) (intro.), (b), (c) 1. a. and b. and  
11 2. b. and c., (d) 1. and (e), (5m) and (6) (a), (b) (intro.), (c), (d), (e), (f) and (g) (intro.)  
12 and 1. (intro.), as renumbered, are amended to read:

13 235.399 (1) (am) 2. (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority may grant exceptions to  
14 the requirement under subd. 1. that a full-time employee means an individual who,  
15 as a condition of employment, is required to work at least 2,080 hours per year if all  
16 of the following apply:

17 (3) (a) The ~~corporation~~ authority may designate not more than 30 enterprise  
18 zones.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 238.399 (3) (a). This SECTION has been affected by  
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -0364/P4 and -1215/P4.

19 (b) (intro.) In determining whether to designate an area under par. (a), the  
20 ~~corporation~~ authority shall consider all of the following:

21 (bm) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall specify whether an enterprise zone  
22 designated under par. (a) is located in a tier I county or municipality or a tier II county  
23 or municipality.

1 (c) ~~The corporation~~ authority shall, to the extent possible, give preference to the  
2 greatest economic need.

3 (d) Notwithstanding pars. (b) and (c), ~~the corporation~~ authority shall designate  
4 as enterprise zones at least 3 areas comprising political subdivisions whose  
5 populations total less than 5,000 and at least 2 areas comprising political  
6 subdivisions whose populations total 5,000 or more but less than 30,000. In  
7 designating an enterprise zone under this paragraph, ~~the corporation~~ authority may  
8 consider indicators of an area's economic need and the effect of designation on other  
9 economic development activities.

10 (5) CERTIFICATION. (intro.) ~~The corporation~~ authority may certify for tax  
11 benefits any of the following:

12 (b) A business that relocates to an enterprise zone from outside this state, if the  
13 business offers compensation and benefits to its employees working in the zone for  
14 the same type of work that are at least as favorable as those offered to its employees  
15 working outside the zone, as determined by ~~the corporation~~ authority.

16 (c) 1. a. The business enters into an agreement with ~~the corporation~~ authority  
17 to claim tax benefits only for years during which the business maintains the  
18 increased level of personnel.

19 b. The business offers compensation and benefits for the same type of work to  
20 its employees working in the enterprise zone that are at least as favorable as those  
21 offered to its employees working in this state but outside the zone, as determined by  
22 ~~the corporation~~ authority.

23 2. b. The business enters into an agreement with ~~the corporation~~ authority to  
24 claim tax benefits only for years during which the business maintains the capital  
25 investment.

1           c. The business offers compensation and benefits for the same type of work to  
2 its employees working in the zone that are at least as favorable as those offered to  
3 its employees working in this state but outside the zone, as determined by the  
4 ~~corporation~~ authority.

5           (d) 1. The business is a manufacturer with a significant supply chain in the  
6 state, as determined by the ~~corporation~~ authority.

7           (e) A business located in an enterprise zone if the business purchases tangible  
8 personal property, items, property, or goods under s. 77.52 (1) (b), (c), or (d), or  
9 services from Wisconsin vendors, as determined by the ~~corporation~~ authority.

10           **(5m)** ADDITIONAL TAX BENEFITS FOR SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL EXPENDITURES. If the  
11 ~~corporation~~ authority determines that a business certified under sub. (5) makes a  
12 significant capital expenditure in the enterprise zone, the ~~corporation~~ authority may  
13 certify the business to receive additional tax benefits in an amount to be determined  
14 by the ~~corporation~~ authority, but not exceeding 10 percent of the business' capital  
15 expenditures. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall, in a manner determined by the  
16 ~~corporation~~ authority, allocate the tax benefits a business is certified to receive under  
17 this subsection over the remainder of the time limit of the enterprise zone under sub.  
18 (4).

19           **(6)** (a) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the department of revenue when  
20 the ~~corporation~~ authority certifies a business to receive tax benefits.

21           (b) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall revoke a certification under sub. (5)  
22 if the business does any of the following:

23           (c) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the department of revenue within 30  
24 days of a revocation under par. (b).

1 (d) The ~~corporation~~ authority may require a business to repay any tax benefits  
2 the business claims for a year in which the business failed to maintain employment  
3 levels or a significant capital investment in property required by an agreement under  
4 sub. (5) (c).

5 (e) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall determine the maximum amount of the tax  
6 credits under ss. 71.07 (3w), 71.28 (3w), and 71.47 (3w) that a certified business may  
7 claim and shall notify the department of revenue of this amount.

8 (f) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall annually verify the information submitted  
9 to the ~~corporation~~ authority under ss. 71.07 (3w), 71.28 (3w), or 71.47 (3w).

10 (g) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall adopt policies and procedures  
11 specifying all of the following:

12 1. (intro.) The definitions of a tier I county or municipality and a tier II county  
13 or municipality. The ~~corporation~~ authority may consider all of the following  
14 information when establishing the definitions required under this subdivision:

15 **SECTION 529.** 238.3995 of the statutes is renumbered 235.3995, and 235.3995  
16 (1) (b) and (c), (2) (a) (intro.) and 4., (b) (intro.) and 8., (c) 1. and 2. and (d), (3) (a), (b),  
17 (c) and (d) 1. and 2., (4) (a) (intro.) and 10., (am), (ar), (b) 1., (c) (intro.) and (d) and  
18 (5), as renumbered, are amended to read:

19 235.3995 (1) (b) “Full-time job” has the meaning given in s. ~~238.30~~ 235.30 (2m).

20 (c) “Target population” has the meaning given in s. ~~238.30~~ 235.30 (6).

21 (2) (a) (intro.) Subject to pars. (c) and (e), the ~~corporation~~ authority may  
22 designate an area as an airport development zone if the ~~corporation~~ authority  
23 determines all of the following:

1           4. That the airport development project is not likely to occur or continue  
2 without the ~~corporation~~ authority designation of the area as an airport development  
3 zone.

4           (b) (intro.) In making a determination under par. (a), the ~~corporation~~ authority  
5 shall consider all of the following:

6           8. Any other factors that the ~~corporation~~ authority considers relevant.

7           (c) 1. The ~~corporation~~ authority may not designate as an airport development  
8 zone, or as any part of an airport development zone, an area that is located within  
9 the boundaries of an area that is designated as a development zone under s. ~~238.31~~  
10 235.31, as a development opportunity zone under s. ~~238.395~~ 235.395, or as an  
11 enterprise development zone under s. ~~238.397~~ 235.397.

12           2. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall give the department of transportation the  
13 opportunity to review and comment on any proposed designation under this  
14 subsection and the department of transportation may deny any such designation if  
15 the department of transportation determines that the designation would  
16 compromise the airport's safety or utility. The department of transportation may  
17 also review and comment on any land use or compatibility issues related to any  
18 proposed designation under this subsection.

19           (d) Notwithstanding pars. (a) to (c), and except as provided in par. (e), the  
20 ~~corporation~~ authority shall designate as an airport development zone the area  
21 within the boundaries of Adams, Fond du Lac, Green Lake, Juneau, Langlade,  
22 Lincoln, Marathon, Marquette, Menominee, Oneida, Portage, Price, Shawano,  
23 Taylor, Waupaca, Waushara, Winnebago, Wood, and Vilas counties.

24           (3) (a) When the ~~corporation~~ authority designates an area as an airport  
25 development zone, the ~~corporation~~ authority shall specify the length of time, not to

1 exceed 84 months, that the designation is effective, subject to par. (d). The  
2 ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify each person certified for tax benefits in an airport  
3 development zone, the department of revenue, the department of transportation, the  
4 ~~Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority~~, and the governing body  
5 of each county, city, village, town, and federally recognized American Indian tribe or  
6 band in which territory of the airport development zone is located of the designation  
7 of and expiration date of the airport development zone.

8 (b) When the ~~corporation~~ authority designates an area as an airport  
9 development zone, the ~~corporation~~ authority shall establish a limit, not to exceed  
10 \$3,000,000, for tax benefits applicable to the airport development zone, except that  
11 the ~~corporation~~ authority shall limit the amount of tax benefits applicable to the  
12 airport development zone designated under sub. (2) (d) to \$750,000. The total tax  
13 benefits applicable to all airport development zones may not exceed \$9,000,000, less  
14 any amount allocated to technology zones under s. ~~238.23~~ 235.23 (2) (b) and to  
15 agricultural development zones under s. ~~238.398~~ 235.398 (2) (b), and except that the  
16 total amount allocated to all technology zones under s. ~~238.23~~ 235.23 (2) (b) and to  
17 all agricultural development zones under s. ~~238.398~~ 235.398 (2) (b), may not exceed  
18 \$6,000,000. The ~~corporation~~ authority may not reallocate amounts as provided  
19 under this paragraph on or after January 1, 2010, except that the ~~corporation~~  
20 authority may, after 48 months from the month of any designation under this section,  
21 evaluate the area designated as an airport development zone and reallocate the  
22 amount of available tax benefits.

23 (c) Annually, the ~~corporation~~ authority shall estimate the amount of forgone  
24 state revenue because of tax benefits claimed by persons in each airport development  
25 zone.



1 (d) 1. Notwithstanding the length of time specified by the ~~corporation~~ authority  
2 under par. (a), the designation of an area as an airport development zone shall expire  
3 90 days after the day on which the ~~corporation~~ authority determines that the forgone  
4 tax revenues estimated under par. (c) will equal or exceed the limit established for  
5 the airport development zone.

6 2. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall immediately notify each person certified for  
7 tax benefits in an airport development zone, the department of revenue, the  
8 department of transportation, the ~~Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development~~  
9 ~~Authority~~, and the governing body of each county, city, village, town, and federally  
10 recognized American Indian tribe or band in which territory of the airport  
11 development zone is located of a change in the expiration date of the airport  
12 development zone under this paragraph.

13 (4) (a) (intro.) A person that intends to operate a place of business in an airport  
14 development zone may submit to the ~~corporation~~ authority an application and a  
15 business plan. The business plan shall include all of the following:

16 10. Any other information required by the ~~corporation~~ authority or the  
17 department of revenue.

18 (am) A person that intends to operate a business in the airport development  
19 zone designated under sub. (2) (d) may submit to the ~~corporation~~ authority an  
20 application and a business plan that includes all of the information required under  
21 par. (a). In approving business plans submitted under this paragraph, the  
22 ~~corporation~~ authority shall give higher priority to airport development projects  
23 located or proposed to be located in areas that have a low median household income,  
24 as determined by the ~~corporation~~ authority.

1 (ar) The ~~corporation~~ authority may not accept or approve any applications or  
2 business plans submitted under par. (a) on or after March 6, 2009.

3 (b) 1. Except as provided in subd. 2., if the ~~corporation~~ authority approves a  
4 business plan under par. (a) or (am), the ~~corporation~~ authority shall certify the  
5 person as eligible for tax benefits. The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the  
6 department of revenue within 30 days of certifying a person under this paragraph.

7 (c) (intro.) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall revoke a person's certification under  
8 par. (b) when the designation of the applicable airport development zone expires or  
9 if the person does any of the following:

10 (d) The ~~corporation~~ authority shall notify the department of revenue within 30  
11 days after revoking a certification under par. (c).

12 (5) VERIFICATION OF INFORMATION. The ~~corporation~~ authority annually shall  
13 verify information submitted to the ~~corporation~~ authority under ss. 71.07 (2dm) and  
14 (2dx), 71.28 (1dm) and (1dx), and 71.47 (1dm) and (1dx) as it relates to airport  
15 development zones.

16 **SECTION 530.** 281.625 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 281.625 (2) The department, in consultation with the department of  
18 administration, shall promulgate rules for determining whether a loan is an eligible  
19 loan under s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86 (3) for a loan guarantee under s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86. The rules  
20 shall be consistent with 42 USC 300j-12.

21 **SECTION 531.** 281.625 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 281.625 (3) The department shall determine whether a loan to the owner of a  
23 community water system or the nonprofit owner of a noncommunity water system  
24 is an eligible loan under s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86 (3) for the purposes of the loan guarantee  
25 program under s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86.

1           **SECTION 532.** 281.625 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           281.625 (4) With the approval of the department of administration, the  
3 department of natural resources may transfer funds from the appropriation  
4 accounts under s. 20.320 (2) (s) and (x) to the Wisconsin drinking water reserve fund  
5 under s. ~~234.933~~ 235.933 to guarantee loans under s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86.

6           **SECTION 533.** 281.625 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

7           281.625 (5) The department may contract with the Forward Wisconsin  
8 ~~Housing and Economic~~ Development Authority for the administration of the  
9 program under this section and s. ~~234.86~~ 235.86.

10          **SECTION 534.** 281.75 (4) (b) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

11          281.75 (4) (b) 3. An authority created under subch. II of ch. 114 or ch. 36, 231,  
12 ~~233, 234, 235, or 237, or 238~~.

      \*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 281.75 (4) (b) 3. This SECTION has been affected by  
drafts with the following LRB numbers:-0971/P4 and -1215/P2.

13          **SECTION 535.** 292.11 (7) (d) 1m. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

14          292.11 (7) (d) 1m. b. An area designated by the local governmental unit if the  
15 area consists of 2 or more properties affected by a contiguous region of groundwater  
16 contamination or contains 2 or more properties that are brownfields, as defined in  
17 s. ~~238.13~~ 235.13 (1) (a).

18          **SECTION 536.** 292.255 of the statutes is amended to read:

19          **292.255 Report on brownfield efforts.** The department of natural  
20 resources, the department of administration, and the ~~Wisconsin Economic~~  
21 ~~Development Corporation~~ Forward Wisconsin Development Authority shall submit  
22 a report evaluating the effectiveness of this state's efforts to remedy the  
23 contamination of, and to redevelop, brownfields, as defined in s. ~~238.13~~ 235.13 (1) (a).

1 SECTION 537. 292.63 (4) (cc) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

2 292.63 (4) (cc) 2. b. An applicant that is engaged in the expansion or  
3 redevelopment of brownfields, as defined in s. ~~238.13~~ 235.13 (1) (a), if federal or state  
4 financial assistance other than under this section, has been provided for that  
5 expansion or redevelopment.

6 SECTION 538. 600.01 (1) (b) 8. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 600.01 (1) (b) 8. Guarantees of the Wisconsin Housing and Economic  
8 Development Authority under s. 234.68, 1995 stats., s. 234.69, 1995 stats., s.  
9 234.765, 1995 stats., s. 234.82, 1995 stats., s. 234.87, 1995 stats., and ~~ss. s.~~ s. 234.67,  
10 2013 stats., s. 234.83, 2013 stats., s. 234.84, 2013 stats., s. 234.90, 2013 stats., s.  
11 234.905, 2013 stats., s. 234.907, 2013 stats., and s. 234.91, 2013 stats., and  
12 guarantees of the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority under ss. 235.67,  
13 235.83, 235.84, 235.90, 235.905, 235.907, and 235.91.

14 SECTION 539. 620.25 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 620.25 (2) This section does not apply to s. ~~234.26~~ 235.0277.

16 **SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

17 ~~(1) GLOBAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP COLLECTIVE. Notwithstanding section 16.42 (1)~~  
18 ~~(e) of the statutes, in submitting information under section 16.42 of the statutes for~~  
19 ~~purposes of the 2017-19 biennial budget bill, the department of administration shall~~  
20 ~~submit information concerning the appropriation under section 20.885 (3) (b) of the~~  
21 ~~statutes, as created by this act, as though that appropriation had not been made.~~

22 **SECTION 9150. Nonstatutory provisions; Wisconsin Economic**  
23 **Development Corporation.**

24 (1) ELIMINATION OF WISCONSIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND  
25 WISCONSIN HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.

Insert 212-15 ✓

1           (a) *Assets and liabilities.* On the effective date of this paragraph, the assets and  
2 liabilities of the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation and Wisconsin  
3 Housing and Economic Development Authority become the assets and liabilities of  
4 the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority.

5           (b) *Employees.* On the effective date of this paragraph, all employees of the  
6 Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation and Wisconsin Housing and  
7 Economic Development Authority become employees of the Forward Wisconsin  
8 Development Authority.

9           (c) *Tangible personal property.* On the effective date of this paragraph, all  
10 tangible personal property, including records, of the Wisconsin Economic  
11 Development Corporation and Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development  
12 Authority is transferred to the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority.

13           (d) *Pending matters.* Any matter pending with the Wisconsin Economic  
14 Development Corporation or Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development  
15 Authority on the effective date of this paragraph is transferred to the Forward  
16 Wisconsin Development Authority. All materials submitted to or actions taken by  
17 the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation or Wisconsin Housing and  
18 Economic Development Authority are considered as having been submitted to or  
19 taken by the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority.

20           (e) *Contracts.* All contracts entered into by the Wisconsin Economic  
21 Development Corporation, all contracts entered into by the former department of  
22 commerce and maintained by the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation,  
23 and all contracts entered into by the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development  
24 Authority in effect on the effective date of this paragraph remain in effect and are  
25 transferred to the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority. The Forward

1 Wisconsin Development Authority shall carry out any obligations under those  
2 contracts unless modified or rescinded by the Forward Wisconsin Development  
3 Authority to the extent allowed under the contract.

4 (f) *Policies and procedures; orders.* All policies and procedures of the Wisconsin  
5 Economic Development Corporation and Wisconsin Housing and Economic  
6 Development Authority in effect on the effective date of this paragraph remain in  
7 effect until their specified expiration dates or until amended or repealed by the  
8 Forward Wisconsin Development Authority. All orders issued by the Wisconsin  
9 Economic Development Corporation and Wisconsin Housing and Economic  
10 Development Authority in effect on the effective date of this paragraph remain in  
11 effect until their specified expiration dates or until modified or rescinded by the  
12 Forward Wisconsin Development Authority.

13 (2) INITIAL APPOINTMENTS.

14 (a) *Board of directors.*

15 1. Notwithstanding the requirement of advice and consent of the senate under  
16 section 235.011 (1) of the statutes, as created by this act, the initial members of the  
17 board of directors of the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority nominated by  
18 the governor under that section may be provisionally appointed by the governor,  
19 subject to later senate confirmation. Any provisional appointment shall be in full  
20 force until withdrawn by the governor or acted upon by the senate, and if confirmed  
21 by the senate shall continue for the remainder of the unexpired term, if any, of the  
22 member and until a successor is chosen and qualifies. A provisional appointee may  
23 exercise all the powers and duties of board membership to which the person is  
24 appointed during the time in which the appointee qualifies.

1           2. A provisional appointment made under subdivision 1. that is withdrawn by  
2 the governor shall, upon withdrawal, lapse and create a vacancy for provisional  
3 appointment of another initial member of the board of directors of the Forward  
4 Wisconsin Development Authority. Any provisional appointment made under  
5 subdivision 1. that is rejected by the senate shall upon rejection lapse and create a  
6 vacancy for nomination and appointment of another initial member of the board  
7 under subdivision 1.

8           3. Notwithstanding the length of terms specified for the members of the board  
9 of directors of the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority under section 235.011  
10 (1) of the statutes, as created by this act, 3 of the initial members shall be appointed  
11 for terms expiring on January 1, 2017, 3 of the initial members shall be appointed  
12 for terms expiring on January 1, 2018, 3 of the initial members shall be appointed  
13 for terms expiring on January 1, 2019, and the remaining initial member shall be  
14 appointed for a term expiring on January 1, 2020.

15           (b) *Chief executive officer and chief operating officer.*

16           1. Notwithstanding the requirement of advice and consent of the senate under  
17 section 235.011 (4) of the statutes, as created by this act, the initial chief executive  
18 officer and chief operating officer of the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority  
19 nominated by the governor under that section may be provisionally appointed by the  
20 governor, subject to later senate confirmation. Any provisional appointment shall  
21 be in full force until withdrawn by the governor or acted upon by the senate, and if  
22 confirmed by the senate shall continue at the pleasure of the governor and until a  
23 successor is chosen and qualifies. A provisional appointee may exercise all the  
24 powers and duties of the chief executive officer or chief operating officer, as  
25 appropriate, during the time in which the appointee qualifies.

1           2. A provisional appointment made under subdivision 1. that is withdrawn by  
2 the governor shall, upon withdrawal, lapse and create a vacancy for provisional  
3 appointment of another initial chief executive officer or chief operating officer of the  
4 Forward Wisconsin Development Authority. Any provisional appointment made  
5 under subdivision 1. that is rejected by the senate shall upon rejection lapse and  
6 create a vacancy for nomination and appointment of another initial chief executive  
7 officer or chief operating officer of the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority  
8 under subdivision 1.

9           (3) SUBMISSION OF ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN. No later than 30 days after the effective  
10 date of this subsection, the board of directors of the Forward Wisconsin Development  
11 Authority shall submit a report to the legislature under section 13.172 (2) of the  
12 statutes detailing an organizational plan for the Forward Wisconsin Development  
13 Authority.

14           (4) COORDINATION. To the greatest extent practicable, the Wisconsin Housing  
15 and Economic Development Authority and the Wisconsin Economic Development  
16 Corporation shall seek to coordinate their activities and efforts to establish and  
17 organize the Forward Wisconsin Development Authority, created under this act.

18           **SECTION 9250. Fiscal changes; Wisconsin Economic Development**  
19 **Corporation.**

20           (1) TRANSFERS TO THE FORWARD WISCONSIN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.

21           (a) The unencumbered balance in the appropriation account under section  
22 20.192 (1) (a) of the statutes is transferred to the appropriation account under section  
23 20.885 (3) (a) of the statutes.



1 (b) The unencumbered balance in the appropriation account under section  
2 20.192 (1) (m) of the statutes is transferred to the appropriation account under  
3 section 20.885 (1) (m) of the statutes.

4 (c) The unencumbered balance in the appropriation account under section  
5 20.192 (1) (r) of the statutes is transferred to the appropriation account under section  
6 20.885 (3) (r) of the statutes.

7 (d) The unencumbered balance in the appropriation account under section  
8 20.192 (1) (s) of the statutes is transferred to the appropriation account under section  
9 20.885 (3) (s) of the statutes.

10 **SECTION 9350. Initial applicability; Wisconsin Economic Development**  
11 **Corporation.**

12 (1) SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES. The treatment of section 235.03 (3) (a), (ad),  
13 (ah), (ap), and (at) of the statutes and the renumbering and amendment of section  
14 238.03 (3) (a) of the statutes first apply to grant and loan contracts entered into on  
15 the effective date of this subsection.

16 **SECTION 9452. Effective dates; Other.**

17 (1) CREATION OF FORWARD WISCONSIN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. The repeal of  
18 sections 13.94 (1) (ms), 19.42 (10) (sm), 19.42 (13) (om), 20.192, 20.490, 106.16 (3),  
19 chapter 234 (title), 234.01 (1), 234.01 (2), 234.01 (3), 234.01 (4m), 234.01 (4n), 234.02,  
20 234.03, 234.032, 234.08 (5), 234.08 (6), 234.17, 234.25, 234.255, 234.622 (2m), 234.65,  
21 234.84 (1), 234.84 (5) (a), chapter 238 (title), subchapter I (title) of chapter 238  
22 [precedes 238.01], 238.01 (intro.) and (1), 238.01 (2), 238.02, 238.03 (1), 238.04,  
23 238.045, 238.05, 238.08, 238.125 and 238.26 of the statutes; the renumbering of  
24 sections 234.01 (4), 234.01 (5), 234.01 (5k), 234.01 (7), 234.034, 234.05, 234.06,  
25 234.08 (title), 234.08 (2), 234.08 (3), 234.08 (4), 234.08 (7), 234.15, 234.16, 234.19,

1 234.20, 234.23, 234.24, 234.26, 234.28, 234.29, 234.30, 234.31, 234.32, 234.621,  
2 234.622 (1), 234.622 (3), 234.622 (3m), 234.622 (4), 234.624, subchapter II (title) of  
3 chapter 234 [precedes 234.67], 234.84 (title), 234.92, subchapter III (title) of chapter  
4 234 [precedes 234.94], 234.96, 234.98, 238.01 (3) and subchapter II (title) of chapter  
5 238 [precedes 238.30] of the statutes; the renumbering and amendment of  
6 subchapter I (title) of chapter 234 [precedes 234.01] and sections 45.45, 234.01  
7 (intro.), 234.01 (3m), 234.01 (5m), 234.01 (6), 234.01 (7m), 234.01 (8), 234.01 (9),  
8 234.01 (10), 234.04, 234.07, 234.08 (1), 234.09, 234.10, 234.11, 234.12, 234.13,  
9 234.14, 234.165, 234.18, 234.21, 234.22, 234.265, 234.40, 234.41, 234.42, 234.43,  
10 234.44, 234.49, 234.50, 234.51, 234.52, 234.53, 234.54, 234.55, 234.59, 234.592,  
11 234.60, 234.605, 234.61, 234.622 (intro.), 234.622 (5), 234.622 (6), 234.622 (7),  
12 234.623, 234.625, 234.626, 234.67, 234.75, 234.83, 234.84 (2), 234.84 (3), 234.84 (4),  
13 234.84 (5) (b), 234.86, 234.88, 234.90, 234.905, 234.907, 234.91, 234.93, 234.932,  
14 234.933, 234.94, 234.95, 234.97, 238.03 (title), 238.03 (2), 238.03 (3), 238.046, 238.06,  
15 238.07, 238.09, 238.10, 238.11, 238.12, 238.127, 238.13 (by SECTION 494), 238.133,  
16 238.135, 238.15 (by SECTION 497), 238.16, 238.17, 238.23, 238.30, 238.301, 238.302,  
17 238.303, 238.304, 238.3045, 238.305, 238.306, 238.31, 238.315, 238.32, 238.325,  
18 238.335, 238.34, 238.345, 238.35, 238.363, 238.365, 238.368, 238.37, 238.38,  
19 238.385, 238.395, 238.397, 238.398, 238.399 and 238.3995 of the statutes; the  
20 amendment of sections 1.12 (1) (b), 7.33 (1) (c), 13.172 (1), 13.48 (10) (b) 6., 13.48 (12)  
21 (b) 5., 13.48 (13) (a), 13.62 (2), 13.625 (9), 13.94 (1) (dr), 13.94 (1s) (c) 5., 13.94 (4) (a)  
22 1., 13.95 (intro.), 15.137 (2) (a) 3m., 15.435 (1) (a) 1., 16.002 (2), 16.004 (4), 16.004 (5),  
23 16.004 (12) (a), 16.01 (1), 16.045 (1) (a), 16.15 (1) (ab), 16.287 (2) (a), 16.41 (4), 16.417  
24 (1) (b), 16.52 (7), 16.528 (1) (a), 16.53 (2), 16.54 (9) (a) 1., 16.70 (2), 16.765 (1), 16.765  
25 (2), 16.765 (5), 16.765 (6), 16.765 (7) (intro.), 16.765 (7) (d), 16.765 (8), 16.838 (1) (b),

1 16.85 (2), 16.865 (8), 19.42 (10) (h), 19.42 (13) (g), 19.56 (2) (b) 6., 19.56 (3) (e) (intro.),  
2 19.56 (3) (e) 1., 19.56 (3) (f), 19.57, 20.320 (2) (s), 20.320 (2) (x), 20.370 (2) (mr), 20.370  
3 (9) (ny), 20.485 (2) (vm), 20.485 (3) (b), 20.485 (3) (e), 23.167 (2) (intro.), 23.169 (1),  
4 23.169 (2), 23.175 (1) (b), 25.17 (2) (c), 25.41 (1), 25.41 (2), 25.50 (1) (d), 26.37 (1) (b),  
5 26.37 (2), 30.121 (3w) (b), 34.01 (1), 34.01 (4), 36.09 (1) (am) (intro.), 36.11 (29r) (b)  
6 1., 36.11 (29r) (b) 2., 36.25 (24), 38.04 (1m) (b) (intro.), 38.04 (10m) (a), 38.04 (10m)  
7 (b), 40.02 (54) (b), 40.05 (4) (b), 40.05 (4) (bm), 40.05 (5) (b) 4., 40.62 (2), 40.95 (1) (a)  
8 1., 41.11 (1g) (b) (intro.), 41.11 (1r) (a), 41.11 (1r) (b), 41.60 (1) (c), 45.31 (2), 45.34 (1)  
9 (a) 2., 45.37 (6) (b), 46.28 (1) (a), 46.28 (3), 46.28 (4), 59.57 (1) (a), 60.23 (4) (c), 66.1015  
10 (2) (intro.), 66.1103 (4m) (a) 1., 66.1103 (4m) (a) 2., 66.1103 (4m) (b), 66.1103 (4s) (a)  
11 1., 66.1103 (4s) (b) 3., 66.1103 (4s) (b) 4., 66.1103 (4s) (d), 66.1103 (10) (c), 66.1103 (10)  
12 (g), 66.1107 (2) (a), 66.1201 (16) (a), 66.1205 (3), 66.1213 (7) (b), 70.11 (4b) (b), 70.11  
13 (4b) (c), 70.11 (38r), 71.05 (1) (c) 1., 71.05 (1) (c) 1m., 71.05 (1) (c) 10. a., 71.05 (1) (c)  
14 12., 71.07 (2dm) (a) 1., 71.07 (2dm) (a) 3., 71.07 (2dm) (a) 4., 71.07 (2dm) (f) 1., 71.07  
15 (2dm) (f) 2., 71.07 (2dm) (i), 71.07 (2dm) (j), 71.07 (2dm) (k), 71.07 (2dx) (a) 2., 71.07  
16 (2dx) (a) 4., 71.07 (2dx) (b) (intro.), 2., 3., 4. and 5., 71.07 (2dx) (be), 71.07 (2dx) (bg),  
17 71.07 (2dx) (c), 71.07 (2dx) (d), 71.07 (2dy) (a), 71.07 (2dy) (b), 71.07 (2dy) (c) 1., 71.07  
18 (2dy) (c) 2., 71.07 (2dy) (d) 2., 71.07 (3g) (a) (intro.), 71.07 (3g) (b), 71.07 (3g) (e) 2.,  
19 71.07 (3g) (f) 1., 71.07 (3g) (f) 2., 71.07 (3q) (a) 1., 71.07 (3q) (a) 2., 71.07 (3q) (b) (intro.),  
20 71.07 (3q) (b) 1., 71.07 (3q) (b) 2., 71.07 (3q) (b) 2., 71.07 (3q) (c) 2., 71.07 (3q) (c) 3.,  
21 71.07 (3w) (a) 2., 71.07 (3w) (a) 3., 71.07 (3w) (a) 4., 71.07 (3w) (a) 5d., 71.07 (3w) (a)  
22 5e., 71.07 (3w) (b) (intro.), 71.07 (3w) (b) 5., 71.07 (3w) (bm) 1., 71.07 (3w) (bm) 2.,  
23 71.07 (3w) (bm) 3., 71.07 (3w) (bm) 4., 71.07 (3w) (c) 3., 71.07 (3w) (d), 71.07 (5b) (a)  
24 2., 71.07 (5b) (b) 1., 71.07 (5b) (b) 2., 71.07 (5b) (d) 3., 71.07 (5d) (a) 1. (intro.) (by  
25 SECTION 168), 71.07 (5d) (a) 2m., 71.07 (5d) (a) 3., 71.07 (5d) (b) (intro.), 71.07 (5d) (b)

1 1., 71.07 (5d) (b) 2., 71.07 (5d) (c) 2., 71.07 (5d) (d) 1., 71.07 (9m) (c) (intro.), 71.26 (1)  
2 (be), 71.26 (1m) (e), 71.26 (1m) (em), 71.26 (1m) (k) 1., 71.26 (1m) (m), 71.28 (1) (a),  
3 71.28 (1dm) (a) 1., 71.28 (1dm) (a) 3., 71.28 (1dm) (a) 4., 71.28 (1dm) (f) 1., 71.28 (1dm)  
4 (f) 2., 71.28 (1dm) (i), 71.28 (1dm) (j), 71.28 (1dm) (k), 71.28 (1dx) (a) 2., 71.28 (1dx)  
5 (a) 4., 71.28 (1dx) (b) (intro.), 71.28 (1dx) (b) 2., 71.28 (1dx) (b) 3., 71.28 (1dx) (b) 4.,  
6 71.28 (1dx) (b) 5., 71.28 (1dx) (be), 71.28 (1dx) (bg), 71.28 (1dx) (c), 71.28 (1dx) (d),  
7 71.28 (1dy) (a), 71.28 (1dy) (b), 71.28 (1dy) (c) 1., 71.28 (1dy) (c) 2., 71.28 (1dy) (d) 2.,  
8 71.28 (3g) (a) (intro.), 71.28 (3g) (b), 71.28 (3g) (e) 2., 71.28 (3g) (f) 1., 71.28 (3g) (f) 2.,  
9 71.28 (3q) (a) 1., 71.28 (3q) (a) 2., 71.28 (3q) (b), 71.28 (3q) (c) 2., 71.28 (3q) (c) 3., 71.28  
10 (3w) (a) 2., 71.28 (3w) (a) 3., 71.28 (3w) (a) 4., 71.28 (3w) (a) 5d., 71.28 (3w) (a) 5e.,  
11 71.28 (3w) (b) (intro.), 71.28 (3w) (b) 5., 71.28 (3w) (bm) 1., 71.28 (3w) (bm) 2., 71.28  
12 (3w) (bm) 3., 71.28 (3w) (bm) 4., 71.28 (3w) (c) 3., 71.28 (3w) (d), 71.28 (4) (am) 1., 71.28  
13 (4) (am) 2., 71.28 (5b) (a) 2., 71.28 (5b) (b) 1., 71.28 (5b) (b) 2., 71.28 (5b) (d) 3., 71.28  
14 (6) (c) (intro.), 71.36 (1m) (b) 2., 71.36 (1m) (b) 5., 71.45 (1t) (e), 71.45 (1t) (em), 71.45  
15 (1t) (k) 1., 71.45 (1t) (m), 71.47 (1) (a), 71.47 (1dm) (a) 1., 71.47 (1dm) (a) 3., 71.47  
16 (1dm) (a) 4., 71.47 (1dm) (f) 1., 71.47 (1dm) (f) 2., 71.47 (1dm) (i), 71.47 (1dm) (j), 71.47  
17 (1dm) (k), 71.47 (1dx) (a) 2., 71.47 (1dx) (a) 4., 71.47 (1dx) (b) (intro.), 71.47 (1dx) (b)  
18 2., 71.47 (1dx) (b) 3., 71.47 (1dx) (b) 4., 71.47 (1dx) (b) 5., 71.47 (1dx) (be), 71.47 (1dx)  
19 (bg), 71.47 (1dx) (c), 71.47 (1dx) (d), 71.47 (1dy) (a), 71.47 (1dy) (b), 71.47 (1dy) (c) 1.,  
20 71.47 (1dy) (c) 2., 71.47 (1dy) (d) 2., 71.47 (3g) (a) (intro.), 71.47 (3g) (b), 71.47 (3g) (e)  
21 2., 71.47 (3g) (e) 2., 71.47 (3g) (f) 1., 71.47 (3g) (f) 2., 71.47 (3q) (a) 1., 71.47 (3q) (a)  
22 2., 71.47 (3q) (b) (intro.), 71.47 (3q) (b) 1., 71.47 (3q) (b) 2., 71.47 (3q) (c) 2., 71.47 (3q)  
23 (c) 3., 71.47 (3w) (a) 2., 71.47 (3w) (a) 3., 71.47 (3w) (a) 4., 71.47 (3w) (a) 5d., 71.47 (3w)  
24 (a) 5e., 71.47 (3w) (b) (intro.), 71.47 (3w) (b) 5., 71.47 (3w) (bm) 1., 71.47 (3w) (bm) 2.,  
25 71.47 (3w) (bm) 3., 71.47 (3w) (bm) 4., 71.47 (3w) (c) 3., 71.47 (3w) (d), 71.47 (4) (am),

1 71.47 (5b) (a) 2., 71.47 (5b) (b) 1., 71.47 (5b) (b) 2., 71.47 (5b) (d) 3., 71.47 (6) (c) (intro.),  
2 71.78 (4) (m), 73.03 (35), 73.03 (35m), 73.03 (63), 75.106 (1) (a), 76.636 (1) (b) 1.,  
3 76.636 (1) (b) 2., 76.636 (1) (b) 3., 76.636 (1) (b) 4., 76.636 (1) (d), 76.636 (2) (intro.),  
4 76.636 (2) (b), 76.636 (2) (c), 76.636 (2) (d), 76.636 (2) (e), 76.636 (4) (intro.), 76.636  
5 (5), 76.636 (6), 76.637 (1), 76.637 (2), 76.637 (3), 76.637 (4), 76.638 (1), 76.638 (2),  
6 77.54 (9a) (a), 79.04 (7) (a), 84.01 (6m) (b) (intro.), 84.01 (11m) (a), 84.01 (11m) (b),  
7 85.25 (2) (a), 93.07 (3), 93.07 (18) (b) (intro.), 93.07 (20) (a), 93.07 (20) (b), 93.33 (5)  
8 (intro.), 93.42 (5), 100.45 (1) (dm), 106.16 (2), 106.27 (2m), 109.09 (2) (c) 1. a., 114.31  
9 (6), 196.49 (4), 196.491 (3) (a) 2m. b., 196.491 (3) (d) 8., 224.71 (1br) (intro.), 230.03  
10 (3), 281.625 (2), 281.625 (3), 281.625 (4), 281.625 (5), 281.75 (4) (b) 3., 292.11 (7) (d)  
11 1m. b., 292.255, 292.63 (4) (cc) 2. b., 600.01 (1) (b) 8. and 620.25 (2) of the statutes;  
12 and the creation of section 20.885, chapter 235, section 235.0279 (3), subchapter II  
13 (title) of chapter 235 [precedes 235.03], sections 235.03 (3) (ad), (ah), (ap) and (at) and  
14 235.609 of the statutes and SECTIONS 9150 (1), (2), and (3), 9250 (1), and 9350 (1) of  
15 this act take effect on January 1, 2016, or on the day after publication, whichever is  
16 later.

17

(END)

2015-2016 DRAFTING INSERT  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

LRB-1215/P4ins  
MPG&ZDW:jld/wlj/kjfrs

1           INS 212-17

5

2           **SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.** ✓

3           (1) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS. ✓ Notwithstanding section 16.42 (1) (e) of ✓  
4 the statutes, in submitting information under section 16.42 of the statutes for the  
5 2017-19 fiscal biennium, the department of administration shall submit  
6 information concerning the appropriation under section 20.885 (3) (a) ✓ of the statutes  
7 as though the amount appropriated under that appropriation during the 2016-17  
8 fiscal year had been \$500,000 less. ✓

(end ins 212-15)

## Wyatt, Zachary

---

**From:** Steinmetz, Jana D - DOA <Jana.Steinmetz@wisconsin.gov>  
**Sent:** Friday, January 30, 2015 6:49 PM  
**To:** Wyatt, Zachary; Hanaman, Cathlene; Grinde, Kirsten - DOA  
**Cc:** Ziegler, Paul - DOA; McElgunn, Christopher J - DOA; Quinn, Brian D - DOA  
**Subject:** Compiled bill - preliminary version - Error

**Importance:** High

Hi,

There is one section that should be eliminated from the preliminary compile: Section 885 (creates s. 20.885(3)(b)).

There is one section that should be modified related to this: Section 9101 Nonstatutory provisions; Administration

- (8) Global Entrepreneurship Collective – this should be modified to remove the reference to s. 20.885(3)(b) because this appropriation will not exist. Instead, the nonstatutory provision should remove the \$500,000 from s. 20.885(3)(a) as noncontinuing in 2017-19.

Thanks,  
Jana

**DRAFTER'S NOTE  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-1215/P4dn  
MPG:jld/wlj/kjf:rs

January 30, 2015

new  
date

5

This draft reconciles LRB-0363/P1, LRB-0364/P4, LRB-0369/P1, LRB-0365/P1, LRB-0366/P1, LRB-0367/P1, LRB-0368/P1, LRB-0376/P1, LRB-0807/P5, LRB-0966/P2, LRB-0971/P4, LRB-0996/P2, LRB-0997/P3, LRB-1018/P1, LRB-1215/P2, LRB-1359/P1, and LRB-1364/P4. All of these drafts, except LRB-0363/P1, LRB-0366/P1, LRB-0367/P1, LRB-0368/P1, LRB-0369/P1, LRB-0376/P1, and LRB-1364/P4 should continue to appear in the compiled bill.

Michael Gallagher  
Legislative Attorney  
(608) 267-7511  
michael.gallagher@legis.wisconsin.gov



**DRAFTER'S NOTE  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-1215/P5dn  
MPG:jld/wlj/kjf:jm

February 1, 2015

This draft reconciles LRB-0363/P1, LRB-0364/P4, LRB-0369/P1, LRB-0365/P1, LRB-0366/P1, LRB-0367/P1, LRB-0368/P1, LRB-0376/P1, LRB-0807/P5, LRB-0966/P2, LRB-0971/P4, LRB-0996/P2, LRB-0997/P3, LRB-1018/P1, LRB-1215/P2, LRB-1359/P1, and LRB-1364/P4. All of these drafts, except LRB-0363/P1, LRB-0366/P1, LRB-0367/P1, LRB-0368/P1, LRB-0369/P1, LRB-0376/P1, and LRB-1364/P4 should continue to appear in the compiled bill.

Michael Gallagher  
Legislative Attorney  
(608) 267-7511  
michael.gallagher@legis.wisconsin.gov